
1 
 

MINUTES 
PAYETTE CITY COUNCIL 

Public Hearing &Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

 
6:00 PM – Public Hearing 
 
ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mayor Jeff Williams;Mark Heleker, Nancy Dale, Ray Wickersham, Lee Nelson, 

    Craig Jensen and Jeff Sands  
Members Absent: None. 
Staff Present: Staff Present:  Steve Castenada, Fire Chief; Jacob Hust; Water 

Superintendent; Jamie Couch, Street Supervisor; Chief of Police, Mark Clark; 
Bert Osborn, City Attorney;Randy Fales, Park Supervisor, Randy Schwartz, 
Water Supervisor, John Plaza, Police Captain,Mary Cordova, City 
Administrator; Tiffany Howell, Assistant City Clerk 

 
Budget 2014-2015 
 
Clerk Cordova went over the FY15 budget slideshow. 
 
Kathy Patrick asked if the new firefighter that the fire department wants to add, will be EMT 
certified. Clerk Cordova stated no, he will be EMR certified. 
 
Mayor Williams stated that on the homeowner slide, that is just the City of Payette taxes not 
including the “others” that are listed on your taxes.  
 
Councilor Jensen stated that taxes are actually going down 7% from last year. A gentleman 
asked why the value is going up, but when I go to sell my house it is sold at rock bottom price. 
Councilor Jensen stated that is something that needs to be brought up in front of the county 
commissioners. Councilor Jensen stated that he hired a personal appraiser and took that into the 
County Assessor and they lowered his taxes tremendously.  
 
Councilor Wickersham stated that he would like to thank everyone that showed up at tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
Attorney Osborn closed the public hearing at 6:26pm 
 
7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 
 
A regular meeting of the Payette City Council was called to order at 7:02 PM by Mayor Jeff Williams in 
the City Council Chambers of Payette City Hall, 700 Center Avenue. 

 
ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mayor Jeff Williams;Mark Heleker, Nancy Dale, Ray Wickersham, Lee Nelson, 

    Craig Jensen and Jeff Sands 
Members Absent: None. 
Staff Present: Staff Present:  Steve Castenada, Fire Chief; Jacob Hust; Water 

Superintendent; Jamie Couch, Street Supervisor; Chief of Police, Mark Clark; 
Bert Osborn, City Attorney; Randy Fales, Park Supervisor; Randy Schwartz, 
Water Supervisor, John Plaza, Police Captain, Mary Cordova, City 
Administrator;  Tiffany Howell, Assistant City Clerk 

 
PLEDGE 
Mayor Williamsled the pledge of allegiance. 



2 
 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
Doug Teetzen – 534 North 2nd Street – 
 
Mr. Teetzen stated that the impact of the bike terrain park is in his back yard and affects the whole 
community and this is not something that should be for one persons personal gain. 
 
Mr. Teetzen stated that for the last 2 months he has scrapped dirt and dust off of his personal property. 
The first thing he was told was the dust would be mitigated. Mr. Teetzen wants to know what happens 
when the volunteers are done doing the volunteering. There were two children that were there yesterday 
and left trash everywhere. Who are we going to be calling when we have noise issues? We had a 
motorized ATV out there, after dark use, cigarette butts and beer cans, vandalism concerns, puncture 
vines; does the insurance policy cover specifically a bike terrain park? These are my concerns and I 
would like to hear some answers and was told that there was a push to get the dirt moved before the 
meeting tonight. 

 
Mayor Williams asked if it would be ok to have a written response at a later date. Mr. Teetzen stated that 
would be fine, but he would like it from the council and not the person driving the event.  
 
Darrell Loveland – 402 River Street; Payette, Idaho 
 
Mr. Loveland stated that he did a poll of his neighbors and all but one of them are against this project. 
Mr. Loveland stated that there are a couple of other areas, the brick yard and the water tower property. 
Mr. Loveland stated that he would like to have the councilors spread out, half on one side of town and 
half on the other side. Mr. Loveland stated that he went to the City of Kuna’s website because they have 
a terrain park and they only have 5 active members. Mr. Loveland stated that the puncture vines are 
already a problem. This should be something for everyone to enjoy, not just the kids that want to ride 
their bikes. We are concerned about the barn owls on our property. Is this compliant with the ADA rules? 
Volunteers brought the dirt in, so they can take the dirt out.  
 
Rodney McNitt – 604 North 2nd Street; Payette, Idaho  
 
Mr. McNitt stated that the problem he has had is a lot of vandalism in his area. The softball park is right 
behind my property and I have had kids hanging on my fence, and I have to work at 4am in the morning. 
This is a poor design of the property, who is going to be watching the kids, what are the hours, what 
about the dirt? I am not happy about this project.  
 
Janet Loveland – 402 River Street; Payette, Idaho  
 
Mrs. Loveland stated that the park should be something that serves the whole community and this does 
not. Every park and BMX park and has not been adjacent to homes. People in our area do not use this 
park; take it up to the Jake Sherer Park where people want it. Mrs. Loveland asked City Hall if there was 
a schematic for the park and I was told no. I was told that all the neighbors were in favor and that is not 
the case. My suggestion is for it to be at the Jake Sherer park and not a neighborhood has been tagged, 
bike debris is left, garbage is left, proximity of houses to the park. I am not a negative person up here to 
talk bad about this park, but this was snuck in under our nose, and we were unaware of this project. I 
propose that maybe you could put a stop on what is going on and visit a bmx park and see what a real 
bmx park is. Councilor Dale stated that she thanks Mrs. Loveland for coming and she apologizes for any 
“assumptions” that were made. Councilor Heleker stated that he would echo what Councilor Dale stated, 
he appreciates what you individuals have to say. Mr. Loveland stated that  Mayor Williams and 
Councilor Wickersham stated that there was nothing that can be done and that is a direct quote. 
Councilor Wickersham stated that is not a done deal. 
 
Jennifer Teetzen – 534 North 2nd St; Payette, Idaho  



3 
 

 
Mrs. Teetzen stated that she heard commotion and stopped a city worker who was scrapping the lot. He 
told her that this was a done deal. She stated that she asked the worker why we weren’t notified. Mrs. 
Teetzen stated that the city worker shrugged his shoulder and said “because this is Payette”. Mrs. 
Teetzen stated that her understanding of what happened was that the city was given grant money and 
never utilized it for a public project and the city was caught not doing this. My understanding of the 
budget is that using 100% volunteer work does not qualify for a grant.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A motion was made by Helekerand seconded by Dale to approve 
the Regular meeting minutes of 08-04-2014, 08-06-2014 and 08-
14-2014with the following changes: page 4 the motion was 2nd by 
Councilor Jensen not Nelson. When talking about the Boise Hawk 
game, they did not receive a check yet, they received there 5013c. 
When Officer Toth was talking about the Alive at 25 Councilor 
Heleker would like clarification on where it is daily or monthly. 
Under Department Reports for Admin & Finance take off chairman 
in front of Mark Helekers name. Lee Nelson was at the 8-6 and 8-
14 meeting and would like his name added.  
 
After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion   
CARRIED. 
 

APPROVAL OF BILLS & PAYROLL  
 
A motion was made by Helekerand seconded by 
Jensen to approve the City Bills & Payroll in the amount of 
$240,624.17. 

 
At the roll call: 
Ayes:  Wickersham, Dale, Heleker, Nelson, Jensen, Sands 
Nays: 

 
The motion CARRIED.  

 
SPECIAL ORDERS 
A. Childhood Cancer Awareness 

 
A motion was made by Sands and seconded by Dale to declare the 
month of September as Childhood Cancer Awareness month.   
 
After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion   
CARRIED. 

 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
None 
 
PLANNING & ZONING 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 



4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Prescott Wilkie Lease Agreements – D-05 & E-08 
 

A motion was made by Heleker and seconded by Jensen to 
approve the lease agreements for Prescott Wilkie’s for hangers D-
05 & E-08   
 
After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion   
CARRIED. 
 

Mayor Williams, Bert Osborn and the City Council agree that staff shall approve the lease 
agreements.  

 
B. Agenda Request – Payette Hometown – Community Yard Sale  
 
Mayor Williams stated that Ms. Amason has withdrawn this request.  
 
C. Appointment to Public Works Committee – Chuck Dodson & Liz Amason 

 
A motion was made by Heleker and seconded by Jensen to 
appoint Chuck Dodson & Liz Amason to the Public Works 
Committee.  
 
After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion   
CARRIED. 

 
D. Donation Request – McCain Middle School Education Trip 

 
A motion was made by Wickersham and seconded by Nelson to 
purchase two pirate stencils at Bancroft Park instead of the 
cleaning.  
 
After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion   
CARRIED. 

 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 
 
A. Police Department – July 2014 
 
Chief Clark stated that it is business as usual. Chief Clark stated that we had a grand jury on our homicide 
and he pled not guilty, which is typical and we are moving forward. Ben Brahnam is getting ready to head 
to post and we are excited about that. Chief Clark stated that he received the final report on the shooting 
at Maverick and he has forwarded that to a specialist. We did a crosswalk sting the other day and we got a 
lot of complaints HWY 95 and within a 2 hour period we wrote 10 tickets. We will be doing this again, but 
want to educate them first. We are preparing for Cruise Night and we pull in all of our resources for this 
event. We had a pursuit the other night and no one was hurt, except our car. Fruitland Police spiked our 
car. Our drug task force has been very busy and we had a nice article in the paper, as well as assisting 
Ontario PD. Chief Clark stated that we had a gentleman who drifted off and hit a fire hydrant and a street 
sign. We are happy to say that the vehicle was found and the gentleman was arrested for leaving the 
scene of a crime. Councilor Heleker stated that when we have our opening assembly we tell the students 
about that.  
B. Parks & Rec Committee – August 5th 
C. Airport Commission – August 11th 
 



5 
 

Councilor Wickersham stated that we are having an issue with keeping up with the AV gas and we are 
looking at getting a bigger tank.  
 
D. Library Commission – August 12th& 13th 
 
Councilor Dale stated that the Library has hired a new librarian, her name is Erin Hailey. She is a very 
energetic person and she will be a great addition to the library.   
 
E. Historical Commission – August 18th 
 
Jeff Sands stated that they are really close to finishing up the “walking brochure” and hopefully putting it 
on the website.  

 
MAYORS COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Williams asked if the council wants to have one more work session before the final budget. 
Is everyone ok with the budget we just presented? Councilor Heleker stated that if a project was 
brought to us within the next few days we would be able to get together, then I would like to hear 
that.  
 
Mayor Williams stated that the ball fields up at McCain Middle School, the City paid for the rough 
plumbing, the foundation, concrete and we have spent our $25,000, so the rest is up to the Payette 
County Recreational District.  
 
Mayor Williams stated that he received a call from Idaho Power and they want to put on a 
workshop on October 16th and it will be from 9am-6pm.  
 
Mayor Williams stated that the county’s budget will be held on September 2nd. The museum would 
like all participants to come and voice their support for the museum and ask for more money for 
the museum.  
 
Mayor Williams stated that on September 11th from 4-6pm the city will host a picnic for all 
commissioners, committee members, and city councilmember’s and employees.  
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
Councilor Wickersham stated that he would like to apologize to Mrs. Loveland if she thought he 
was telling her it was a done deal. He was on a job with a customer standing over his shoulder, so 
he apologizes. Councilor Sands stated that he thinks we should have a public hearing for things 
like this, whether we think we are doing the right thing or not.  
 
Mr. & Mrs. Loveland would like to thank the council for listening to the neighbors. Mr. Loveland 
asked if he can discuss this with the Parks and Recreation Committee. Mayor Williams stated that 
you are more than welcome to come to those meetings.  Mrs. Loveland asked if the work can be 
stopped. Councilor Wickersham and Councilor Heleker stated they feel it should be stopped until 
we learn more about this.  
 
Johnny Cochran stated that he would like to thank the city for the CPI increase.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

A motion was made by Helekerand seconded by Nelson 
to adjourn the regular meeting at8:13 PM. 
 



6 
 

After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion 
CARRIED. 

 
      Signed this_____day of__________________, 2014. 
 

____________________________________ 
      Jeffery T. Williams, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Tiffany howell 
 

 

 

 


